
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JANUARY 17, 2017                                                              REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. December 6, 2016  CIOFFI 
   B. December 15, 2016 (Special)   CIOFFI 
   C. December 20, 2016  CIOFFI                                             
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –  A. Executive – December 29, 2016 & January 11, 2017  CIOFFI   
                        B. Conservation & Public Affairs – January 5, 2017  CIOFFI                                     

                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - DECEMBER  BLOOMER                                                                      
  

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
A. Water Use Violation – Civil Penalty Hearing (s)  KRAUSE 
B. Request Authorization for Board Attendance/Urban Water Institute Conference  KRAUSE 

 
8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. 2016 Capital Improvement Projects Presentation KRAUSE 
B. December Water Use Reduction Figures KRAUSE 
C. Lake Perris Seismic Remediation Update KRAUSE 
D. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – December 15, 2016 RIDDELL  
E. DWA Website Update METZGER                          

 
9. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. Activities 
 
10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
January 17, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
   
12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8734 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 

   MINUTES    2-A 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

December 6, 2016 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
      
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
   
  
    

Attendance 

17651.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Oygar in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17652.   President Cioffi called for approval of the November 1, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
  
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written (Director Ewing 
abstained due to his absence, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
   
17653.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on October 31 staff discovered two storage 
containers and the outer perimeter of the Reclamation Plant had been 
vandalized, broken into and burglarized. Over $3,000 of copper wire, metal 
clad cabling and aluminum wire had been stolen. Palm Springs Police were 
contacted and a report was filed. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of  11/01/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Reclamation Plant 
Fence/Copper Wire 
Theft 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8735 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
  Mr. Krause stated on November 22 at approximately 2:30 
a.m., stand-by was called to assist the fire department with turning the water 
off near the Riviera Hotel due to a traffic accident. A vehicle hit and 
destroyed the hotel’s 8” fire service device and two potable service 
backflows. There were many repairs made by the hotel’s contractors and 
DWA. Service was back on November 25. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported on November 26 at approximately 11:30 
a.m. staff responded to a hit 2” air release/vacuum valve at Sanborn Way, 
south of Racquet Club Dr. The valve was repaired and a cracked union and 
cover were replaced. A police report was filed. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause announced that the initial 
2017 allocation was set at 20%. DWR used the 30% delivery schedules as 
submitted earlier by SWP contractors to arrive at the 20% schedule. 
 
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone that DWA offices will be 
closed on Friday, December 23 and Monday, December 26 for the 
Christmas holiday. He also reminded everyone about the Proposition 218 
hearing to be held on Thursday, December 15, 6:00 p.m. Cielo Vista 
Charter School Cafeteria, 650 S. Paseo Dorotea. 
    
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
17654.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the November 10, 2016 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
  
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the November 23, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
    
17655.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17656.  President Cioffi called upon Finance Director Krieger to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of October 2016. 
 
  Finance Director Krieger reported that the Operating fund 
received $2,265,210 in Water Sales Revenue. $164,184 was received in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. $54,630 was received in Advanced Work 
Order deposits. Included in the Miscellaneous receipts is $283,834 in 
Proposition 84 Grant Funds (Turf Buy Back), $31,840 from City of Palm 
Springs (Annual Option Property Lease), and $10,854 from Southern 
California Edison (Solar Field II Rebate-September 2016). $2,348,964 was 
paid out in Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 16% over 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
Riviera Hotel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit air release/vacuum 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWP Allocation 
 
 
 
 
 
Christmas Holiday 
Office Closure 
 
 
Prop. 218 Hearing 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Conserv. & PA 
11/10/16 
 
 
 
 
Executive 11/23/16 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (October 2016) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8736 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
budget, Year-to-date Total Revenues are 15% over budget, and Year-to-
date Total Expenses are 17% under budget. There were 22,326 active 
services as of October 31, 2016 compared to 22,309 as of September 30, 
2016 and compared to 21,816 as of October 31, 2013. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Mr. Krieger stated that 
$1,350,110 was received in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments 
($1,010,014 from the Operating Fund, $340,096 from private pumpers). 
$411,787 was received in State Water Project Refunds (2014/2015). 
$32,804 was received in Whitewater Hydro Power Sales (September 2016).  
$755,515 was paid out in State Water Project Charges (YTD SWP 
payments – July thru October $6,729,323). 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $8,952 was received in 
Sewer Capacity Charges. There are a total of 69 contracts (48 Cathedral 
City Cove and 21 Dreams Homes) with 26 delinquent (38%). In the 
Miscellaneous Receipts category, $56,438 was received from Riverside 
County for reimbursement of W/O # 14-001 (Perez Rd. sewer installation). 
$64,264 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17657.  President Cioffi called upon Outreach and Conservation 
Manager Metzger to present the civil penalty hearings for water use 
violations. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted there have been more than 420 violations 
issued and that recipients have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Staff 
has received three hearing requests for today. There are no appellants 
present for today’s hearing. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger announced the first appellant is Mervis Ellis. 
She then presented information and noted the violations: 1) Irrigating 
during restricted hours, and 2) Runoff.  It was noted that in September 
2014, staff issued a warning call regarding the restricted period. The fine is 
$50 and the reason for appeal is the customer was not aware that irrigation 
timer was not set properly. 
 
  Vice President Stuart noted the importance of making sure 
appellants are aware of the issues causing their violations. 
    
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to uphold the appeal; 
violation occurred and waive the penalty. After a second by Director Oygar, 
the motion carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 
  Mrs. Metzger stated the second appellant is Nabil Ali. She 
presented information and noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during 
restricted hours, and 2) Runoff. It was noted in July 2015 a warning letter 
was issued regarding watering during restricted period and excessive 
runoff. The fine is $50 and the reasons for appeal; should have received 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
 
Water Use Violations – 
Civil Penalty Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mervis Ellis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Uphold 
Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
Nabil Ali 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8737 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
warning; second home which has power outages; not aware of battery 
backup; two broken sprinklers; has already conserved; and request 
concession for reseeding. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to deny the appeal; 
violation occurred and issue penalty. After a second by Director Ewing, the 
motion carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 
  Mrs. Metzger stated the third appellant is Deepwell 
Apartments. Information was presented and the violation was noted as:  
1) Irrigating during restricted hours. This is a commercial property, its third 
violation and the fine amount is $500. Previous violations occurred in June 
2016 and October 2016 and two warnings were issued before the violations. 
The reasons for appeal; he does not receive the bills, so unaware of 
restrictions; the new manager is unaware of guidelines and confusion by 
media coverage. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to deny the appeal; violation 
occurred and issue penalty. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the 
motion carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 
17658.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for Board action regarding a claim for damages filed by 
Russell Lane. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that Mr. Lane is claiming the Agency is 
responsible for injury to his knees, lower back and shoulders due to a loose 
manhole cover at 1580 Cabildo Circle on July 5, 2016. The Construction 
Superintendent and Assistant Construction Superintendent viewed the 
location and have determined that the cover is not the property of the 
Agency. Staff requests the Board reject the claim for damages filed by 
Russell Lane. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation to reject the claim for damages filed by Russell Lane. 
After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried unanimously 
(Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
  
17659.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
approval of the contract extension with Reeb Government Relations, LLC. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that Reeb Government Relations, LLC has 
contracted with the Agency since December 2004 for legislative 
representation. The proposed contract renewal includes a 3.4% increase and 
will extend through December 31, 2018. Staff requests authorization for the 
General Manager to execute the proposed contract with Reeb Government 
Relations, LLC through December 31, 2018. 
 

Action Items: 
Water Use Violations 
– Civil Penalty 
Hearings 
(Cont.) 
 
Deny Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
Deepwell Apartments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
Claim for 
Damages/Russell Lane 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reeb Government 
Relations LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8738 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation for the General Manager to execute the proposed contract 
extension with Reeb Government Relations, LLC. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer absent). 
 
17660.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the November 17, 2016 Board of Directors of the State Water 
Contractors, Inc. meeting. 
 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
Board Action Items, 2) Water Supply Report, 3) General Manager’s Report; 
and 4) Water Supply Objectives Update. 
 
17661.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the October Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 16 percent reduction during October 2016 compared to October 
2013. He noted the cumulative savings June 2015 through October 2016 is 
24 percent. 
 
17662.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1143 Placing in Nomination 
Joseph K. Stuart as a member of ACWA Region 9 Board. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that ACWA Region 9 Board declared a 
vacancy on December 1, 2016 and directed ACWA staff to take necessary 
steps to solicit candidates for election to the remainder of the open term. 
Vice President Stuart has expressed an interest in serving on the ACWA 
Board. Staff prepared Resolution No. 1143, which expresses the Agency’s 
support for Vice President Stuart’s nomination, as required by ACWA. 
 
  Director Oygar moved to adopt Resolution No. 1143. After a 
second by President Cioffi, the motion carried unanimously (Secretary-
Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1143 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
PLACING IN NOMINATION JOSEPH K. STUART 

AS A MEMBER OF THE REGION 9 BOARD OF 
THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 

WATER AGENCIES 
 
17663.  President Cioffi and Vice President Stuart noted their 
attendance at the recent NWRA conference held in San Diego. 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Reeb Government 
Relations LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
11/17/16 SWC Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Item: 
Resolution No. 1143 
Nominate Joseph K. 
Stuart/ACWA Region 9 
Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1143 
Adopted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
Directors Reports on 
NWRA Conference 
Attendance 



8739 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
  President Cioffi, Vice President Stuart and Director Ewing 
noted their attendance at the recent ACWA conference held in Anaheim. 
 
17664.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach 
& Conservation reports for November 2016. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted the preliminary production numbers for 
November show a 21 percent reduction. 
 
17665.  Director Ewing noted his attendance at three of the Prop. 218 
workshops. 
 
17666.  At 9:51 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Labor Negotiators, (A) pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957.6, Agency Designated Representatives: 
General Manager Krause, Assistant General Manager Johnson, Human 
Resources Manager Gaudinez, Employee Organization: DWA Employees’ 
Association; Conference with Legal Counsel, (B) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (C) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (D) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (E) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; (F) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition; and (G) Real Property 
Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Property-0.504 
acre west of Indian Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via 
Olivera, Agency Negotiators: General Manager Krause, Assistant General 
Manager Johnson, Negotiating Parties: Ayres Advisors, Under Negotiation: 
Price and terms.  
 
17667.  At 11:27 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action for Items B 
through G. 
 
  Regarding Item 11-A and 7-D, Director Ewing made a motion 
to approve the January 1, 2017 Position Classification Schedule Change and 
authorize the General Manager to make the proposed changes. After a 
second by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously 
(Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 
 
 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
Directors Reports on 
ACWA Conference 
Attendance 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation – 
November 2016 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
Director Ewing – Prop 
218 Workshops  
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
C. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
D. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
E. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
F. Real Property 
Negotiators  
G. Real Property 
Negotiators 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
 
Approve January 1, 
2017 Position 
Classification Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8740 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/06/16 

 
  Regarding Item 11-A and 7-E, Director Ewing made a motion 
to approve the 2016 Desert Water Agency Salary Survey. After a second by 
Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer absent). 
 
17668.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:29 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Approve Salary Survey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



8741 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/16 

 

   MINUTES    2-B 
OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

December 15, 2016 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
 Vicki Petek, Outreach & Conserv. Associate ) 
 Kim McCance, Senior Admin. Assistant ) 
      
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Kim Boehler, NBS Local Gov’t. Solutions ) 
 
Public: Michael Reandeau, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Eric Dufair, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Sheila Cobrin, Palm Springs resident ) 
 John Rutenberg, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Andrew Sawyer, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Pat Ching, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Pat ElSharei, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Roxanne Ploss, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Tom Kieley III, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Rick Purnell, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Larry Wright, Palm Springs resident ) 
 David E. Bell, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Michele Johnson, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Melanie Mikulic, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Craig Mahaffey, Cathedral City resident ) 
 Deiter Crawford, Palm Springs resident ) 
 
   
  
    

Attendance 



8742 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/16 

 
17669.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17670.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause for 
staff’s presentation regarding the Proposition 218 notice and hearing. 
 
  Mr. Krause provided a presentation on the Proposition 218 
public hearing process. He noted that on September 28, 2016, the Board of 
Directors set a public hearing for tonight to consider adjustments to rates, 
fees and charges for domestic water, recycled water, groundwater 
replenishment and sewer services.  
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause explained the Agency’s 
various expenses and costs. 
   
  Conservation and Outreach Manager Metzger discussed the 
various community outreach efforts, the Proposition 218 process and the 
customer assistance program. She noted if the proposed rate adjustments are 
approved tonight, they would become effective January 1, 2017. 
 
  Kim Boehler, NBS Local Government Solutions, provided a 
PowerPoint presentation that detailed its cost of service study, 
recommendations and proposed rate adjustments. 
 
  Agency Counsel Riddell explained the hearing process and 
stated proper notice was given and that the Agency has met all the 
necessary requirements. He indicated that protests have to be in writing 
showing the parcel, what charge it is regarding and signed by the property 
owner. These protests must be submitted by the end of tonight’s hearing. If 
there is less than 50 percent protests received of the affected parcels, the 
Board can legally proceed with the recommended action on the rate 
adjustments. 
 
  President Cioffi opened the public hearing at 6:42 p.m. 
 
  The following individuals spoke in opposition of the proposed 
rate adjustments: Michael Reandeau, John Rutenberg, Andrew Sawyer, Pat 
Ching, Pat ElSharei, Roxanne Ploss, Rick Purnell, Larry Wright, David E. 
Bell, Michele Johnson, Melanie Mikulic, Craig Mahaffey, and Deiter 
Crawford. 
 
  The following individual spoke in support of the proposed 
rate adjustments: Tom Kieley III. 
   
  There being no one else wishing to address the Board, 
President Cioffi closed the public hearing at 7:23 p.m. He then announced a 
short recess for staff to calculate the protests. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
DWA Rate 
Study/Proposition 218 
Notice & Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Hearing - Open 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Hearing - Close 
 
 
 
 



8743 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/16 

 
  President Cioffi asked Assistant Board Secretary Baca to 
report on the protests that were received both before tonight’s hearing and 
at the hearing. 
 
  Ms. Baca reported that assuming all protests received both 
prior and during the hearing are valid, the protests are counted as the 
following: Out of 142 parcels impacted by the recycled water rates, there 
were no protests received; Out of 48,479 parcels impacted by the proposed 
replenishment assessment charge there was 1 protest (.003%) received for 
the Whitewater River Subbasin, there were 8 protests (.07%) received for 
the Mission Creek Subbasin, and 0 protests received for the Garnet Hill 
Subbasin; Out of 2,180 parcels impacted by the proposed sewer rates, there 
were 3 protests (.14%); and out of 36,707 parcels impacted by the proposed 
domestic water rates, there were 159 protests (.43%). 
   
  Mr. Riddell acknowledged there were not sufficient protests 
received; therefore, the Board may take action and consider adoption of the 
proposed rates. 
 
  President Cioffi clarified that staff’s recommendation is for 
approval and adoption of the first round of rate adjustments, to be effective 
on January 1, 2017. A public hearing is not required for the remaining 
adjustments, which will be considered at a future Board meeting in June 
2017. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve and adopt 
Resolution No. 1144 Establishing Rates, Fees and Charges for Domestic 
Water Service. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
   

RESOLUTION NO. 1144 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES & CHARGES 

FOR DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve and adopt 
Resolution No. 1145 Establishing Rates, Fees and Charges for Sewer 
Service. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1145 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES AND CHARGES 

FOR SEWER SERVICE 
 
 

Prop. 218 Hearing 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1144 
Adopted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1145 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8744 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/16 

 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve and adopt 
Resolution No. 1146 Establishing Rates, Fees and Charges for Recycled 
Water Service. After a second by President Cioffi, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1146 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES AND CHARGES 

FOR RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 

17671.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 8:14 p.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Prop. 218 Hearing 
(Cont.) 
Resolution No. 1146 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



8745 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/20/16 

 

   MINUTES    2-C 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

December 20, 2016 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
      
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Linda Devlin, Ahern-Adcock-Devlin, LLP ) 
 
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
     

Attendance 

17672.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17673.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated at last month’s ACWA Fall Conference, the 
Agency was recognized by ACWA/JPIA for its loss ratio for the Liability 
and Property programs. The Agency received the “President’s Special 
Recognition Award” certificate (loss ratio of 20% or less). 
 
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone that the Agency’s offices will 
be closed Friday, December 23 and Monday, December 26 for the 
Christmas holiday. 
      
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
17674.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the December 12, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
       

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
ACWA/JPIA 
Recognition 
 
 
 
 
 
Christmas Holiday 
Closure 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 12/12/16 
 
 
 



8746 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/20/16 

 
17675.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17676.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of November 
2016. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating fund 
received $1,954,292 in Water Sales Revenue. $134,766 was received in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. Included in the Miscellaneous receipts is 
$5,500 from Indio Water Authority for its participation in the CV Water 
Counts Conservation Program. $1,558,717 was paid out in Accounts 
Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 15% over budget, Year-to-date Total 
Revenues are 15% over budget, and Year-to-date Total Expenses are 17% 
under budget. There were 22,337 active services as of November 30, 2016 
compared to 22,326 as of October 31, 2016 and compared to 21,856 as of 
November 30, 2013. 
  
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$39,711 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $4,766 was received in 
Groundwater Replenishment Assessments from private pumpers. $24,724 
was received in the Miscellaneous Receipts category from CVWD (Prop. 
84 IRWMP Conservation Program). $678,085 was paid out in State Water 
Project charges (YTD SWP payments: July-Nov = $7,407,408).  
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$8,501 was received in Sewer Capacity Charges. There are a total of 68 
contracts (47 Cathedral City Cove and 21 Dream Homes) with 24 
delinquent (35%). $135,256 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
  
17677.  President Cioffi called upon Finance Director Krieger to 
present staff’s request for acceptance of the Ahern-Adcock-Devlin, LLP 
Annual Audit for 2015-2016 Fiscal Year. 
 
  Mr. Krieger welcome Linda Devlin of Ahern-Adcock-Devlin, 
LLP and invited Ms. Devlin to present her report. 
 
  Ms. Devlin gave a brief overview of the audit report. She 
announced the merger with SingerLewak. She then noted the following: 
Deferred outflows increased $1.7 million while deferred inflows increased 
$.4 million; Current year operating revenues decreased $3.1 million while 
operating expenses increased $7.8 million, Total revenues were $51.3 
million and total expenses were $49.2 million. There was discussion on the 
new accounting pronouncements. 
 
 

Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (November 
2016) 
 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
 
Acceptance of 2015-
2016 Ahern-Adcock-
Devlin LLP Annual 
Audit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8747 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/20/16 

 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to accept Ahern-
Adcock-Devlin, LLP’s audit for Fiscal Year 2015/2016. Secretary-
Treasurer Bloomer seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
17678.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1147 Approving the 
Submission of Alternatives under the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act. 
 
  Mr. Krause explained that the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA) establishes a process for local agencies to 
develop an Alternative in lieu of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
for evaluation by DWR. An Alternative is required to be submitted to DWR 
by January 1, 2017, and every 5 years thereafter. The Agency and its 
partners in the Mission Creek and Indio Sub-basins have prepared “Bridge 
Documents” that are intended to provide an explanation on how the 
elements of the groundwater management plans are functionally equivalent 
to the plan elements required by SGMA. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause stated the Agency 
proposed to submit to DWR along with its partners these plans as 
Alternative GSP’s along with their respective Bridge Documents before the 
deadline. Staff requests adoption of Resolution No. 1147 and approval for 
the submission of the alternative documentation for the Indio Sub-basin and 
the Mission Creek Sub-basin to DWR as Alternatives under SGMA. 
 
  Director Ewing suggested a revision on page two; remove 
“the” from the second line (“the” Alternative Documentation). 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation, noting Director Ewing’s revision. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1147 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY APPROVING THE 
SUBMISSION OF ALTERNATIVES UNDER 

THE SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER 
MANAGEMENT ACT 

 
17679.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the November Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 21 percent reduction during November 2016 compared to 
November 2013. He noted the cumulative savings June 2015 through 
November 2016 is 24 percent. He also noted the amount of fresh water 
outflow to the ocean was 521,375-acre feet for November. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Acceptance of 2015-
2016 Ahern-Adcock-
Devlin LLP Annual 
Audit 
 
Request Adoption of 
Resolution No. 1147 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1147 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Item: 
November Water 
Production 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8748 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/20/16 

 
17680.  Director Ewing noted correspondence received from Rick 
Seidner. 
 
  Vice President Stuart commented on last week’s Prop. 218 
hearing and the media coverage by The Desert Sun. 
 
17681.  At 8:50 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Labor Negotiators, (A) pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957.6, Agency Designated Representatives: 
General Manager Krause, Assistant General Manager Johnson, Human 
Resources Manager Gaudinez, Employee Organization: DWA Employees’ 
Association; Conference with Legal Counsel, (B) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (C) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (D) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (E) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency;  and (F) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition. 
 
17682.  At 10:14 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action for Items B 
through F. 
 
  Regarding Item 9-A, Conference with Labor Negotiators, 
Director Ewing made a motion to approve and adopt the Revised January 1, 
2017 Position Classification Schedule Change, replacing the previously 
adopted schedule. After a second by Director Oygar, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
17683.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:15 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Directors 
Comments/Requests 
Director Ewing 
Correspondence  
 
Vice President Stuart 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
C. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
D. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
E. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
F. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
 
Approve & Adopt 
Revised January 1, 
2017 Position 
Classification Schedule 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



3 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2017 
 
 

  
 
 
 

On December 17 at approximately 2:30 a.m., staff responded to a hit six inch fire service at 68945 
Perez Rd. Contact was made with the owner and authorization was received to make the 
necessary repairs by DWA. There was damage on the customer side that they will need to repair. 
The water loss as through a fully open six inch pipe, which ran for approximately 30 minutes. A 
police report was filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 

 

 

On December 30, 2016 at approximately 9:00 p.m., stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on 
Saturnino Rd. and Calle Encilia. Staff was unable to put the fire hydrant back in service due to the 
bury needing to be replaced. Staff made repairs and chlorinated the fire hydrant. They also placed 
concrete for the sidewalk. This was not a drunk driver, it happened to be an Uber driver. A police 
report was made. The water loss was from a fully open six inch fire hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately thirty-five minutes. The hydrant was put back in service on January 6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 7 

 

On January 12 at approximately 6:00 p.m. stand-by responded to hit fire hydrant on Arenas Dr. 
and Saturmino Dr. This was a hit and run. Staff was unable to access the fire hydrant valve and 
had to shut down the main line. They were able to reinstall the fire hydrant and put it back in 
service. A police report was made. The water loss was for approximately one hour through a fully 
open 6 inch fire hydrant bury. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 7 

 

2017 Imported Water Supply 
Pursuant to the SWP Contractors Notice Number 16-10, the 2017 Table A allocation was 
increased from 20% to 45%. This equates to 87,345.00 acre-feet (assumes the 100,000 acre-foot 
transfer is not called back (45,000 acre-feet)).  The DWA/CVWD/MWD exchange account 
balance is 87,088.00 acre-feet.  If MWD kept all of our table A this would essentially zero out the 
exchange account. 
 
MWD has temporarily stored some of our water in San Luis Reservoir using our carryover rights 
to do so.  The DWA/CVWD carryover in San Luis Reservoir is currently 42,211 acre-feet.  With all 
the storms this year it is very likely that if this water is left in the reservoir it will spill (be 
lost).  Under our agreement with MWD our water if spilled will be replaced by them at no cost to 
us.  They will not let this happen, therefor this water will be released from San Luis Reservoir and 
we will receive it since the exchange agreement does not allow the account to go negative.  This 
means that the water listed below will also have to be delivered this year to keep the account from 
going negative.  Probably more water than this will be delivered because MWD will not want the 
account to be at near zero.  In addition to the water listed below it is apparent that storm water is 
going to be available and DWA and CVWD may receive additional amounts if desired and agreed 
to by MWD. 
 
Scheduled delivery of QSA water in 2017 is 35,000 acre-feet. 
Scheduled delivery of Rosedale Rio-Bravo water in 2017 is 9,500 acre-feet. 
Approximately minimum delivery for this year is 86,968 acre-feet. 

 
 

Special Board Meeting 
A Special Board Meeting has been scheduled to discuss the approval of the funding agreement 
for the Sites Reservoir project Phase I.  The meeting is scheduled to allow the attendance of Jim 
Watson the Project General Manager to attend the meeting to answer questions and clarify any 
issues necessary.  The meeting is scheduled for January 24th at 2 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 7 

 

 
 

2017 Power Update 
Not unlike the Agency, SCE spends nearly half of its revenue on supply.  The other half is spent 
on non-generation services such as distribution, transmission, system development, reliability etc.  
Much of their expense is fixed.   
 
SCE forecasts a natural gas price of $3.15/MMBtu for 2017, which is $0.58 higher than the 
average forecast gas price included in the 2017 ERRA (Energy Resource Recovery Account) May 
forecast.  This is driving increased SCE rates.  The system average rate is estimated to increase 
6% in 2017. 
 
By 2020, when 33% of California’s electricity is mandated to come from renewable resources, the 
net load curve is expected to look like a duck. 
 

 
 
Southern California Edison is re-assessing their current Time Of Use (TOU) periods to determine 
the potential need to shift these periods for all customer classes to later in the day.  DWA has 
traditionally taken advantage of Super off-peak rate schedules.  We shut down in the summer 
during the afternoons only during the weekdays.  Now it is proposed that the super off peak be 
extended to the winter month’s everyday between 8 am and 4 pm.  In order for DWA to take 
advantage of Super off-peak rates we would have to pump everything at night.  Traditionally 
weekends have always been considered off-peak, now it is proposed that they are treated like 
weekdays. 
 
The Net energy metering (NEM 2.0) successor tariff was approved on January 28 by the PUC.  
Net Metering 2.0 makes a few minor changes to California’s original net metering policy, but it 
preserves the key element that makes solar economical for California residents: retail rate bill 
credits.  Homeowners and businesses that enroll in NEM 2.0 will still receive per-kWh credits for 
their solar electricity that are equal to the value of a kWh of utility electricity. This means that the 
economics of solar are still very favorable under NEM 2.0. 
 



Page 6 of 7 

 

 
There are three main differences between the original California net metering policy and Net 
Metering 2.0: time-of-use rates, interconnection fees, and non-bypassable charges. 
 
Under NEM 2.0, every property owner who installs a solar energy system will automatically be 
switched to TOU rates for their electric bills. What you pay per kWh will depend on your utility. As 
of November 2016, PG&E, SCE and SDG&E are still developing their solar TOU rate schedules. 
 
Under NEM 2.0, residential and small commercial system owners pay a small one-time 
“interconnection fee” to connect their solar panels to the electric grid. For SDG&E customers, the 
fee is $132, and PG&E customers will pay $145. PG&E has not yet confirmed its interconnection 
fee, but it’s expected to be between $75 and $150. 
 
Non-bypassable charges (NBCs) are per-kilowatt hour charges that are built into utility electric 
rates. They add up to approximately 2-3 cents per kWh and go towards funding energy efficiency, 
low-income customer assistance, and other related programs. 
 
In the original net metering policy, system owners did not have to pay NBCs on the electricity that 
they bought from the utility on a month-to-month basis. Under NEM 2.0, new system owners will 
have to pay NBCs, but only for the kWh of electricity delivered by the utility. None of the solar 
electricity generated and used at home will be subject to NBCs. 
 
Utility customers who installed solar under the original net metering policy will be “grandfathered” 
in for 20 years from their original enrollment date. After that point, they will also move to NEM 2.0. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 7 

 

 
 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
12/19/2016 DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination Conf. Call 
12/21/2016 SWC Water Operations Committee  Conf. Call 
12/22/2016 DWA/CVWD Agreement Update Meeting DWA 
12/27/2016 DWA/CVWD/MSWD Mission Creek S.B. Alt. Plan & Bridge Doc.  Conf. Call 
12/29/2016 Executive Committee Mtg. DWA 
01/05/2017 Outreach & Conservation Committee DWA 
01/06/2017 Special DWA Board Meeting DWA 
01/06/2017 Meetings Kris Poly DWA 
01/11/2017 Executive Committee Mtg. DWA 
01/11/2017 SWC Water Operations Committee Conf. Call 

   
   
   

 
Activities: 
 

• Sites Reservoir Agreement 
• E-Billing – Completed and now tracking 
• Outreach Talking Points – KMIR 
• Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
• Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration procedures 
• State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

(Standing) 
• Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA – Ongoing 
• MSWD Lawsuit – Ongoing 
• ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
• CPV Agreement Amendment 
• Chain of Title 
• Budget Augmentation 
• Replacement Pipelines 2016-2017 
• DWA Power Costs 
• DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination 
• DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
• Recycled Water Effluent Reservoir Coating Failures 
• SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents 
• SWP 2017 Water Supply 
• DWA Credit Card Payment Costs 
• ACBCI Law Suits 
• Lake Perris Dam Remediation 

 
 

 



































7-A 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 17, 2017 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting in March, 2016, staff began issuing water use violations under the new 
ordinance; to date, more than 420 violations have been issued. Recipients of the 
violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Two violations will be reviewed at 
today’s board meeting. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 
including photographic evidence. Photographs will also be projected during the hearing 
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event. After the introduction the 
customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation. If the recipient 
of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the violation 
summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 
conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Initial Notifications Upon Restrictions Going into Effect 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 
2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 
3. Social media outlets 
4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 
5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 
6. Palm Desert Patch 
7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 
8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 
9. Emails to high volume users 

 

 



Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 
2. Bill inserts 
3. Bill on envelope messaging 
4. Billboards 
5. Online advertising (KESQ) 
6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 
7. Social media 
8. Several public presentations on TV 
9. Print and radio Interviews 
10. DWA and CVWD websites 
11. Rates brochure given to all new customers 

 



1. Anita McKinney, 3523 Paseo Barbara, Palm Springs 

 

a. On Tuesday, November 29 at 2:46 p.m. a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Irrigating during restricted hours 

ii. Note: runoff is also evident from photos and was discussed with 

this customer over the phone 

 

b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Customer not aware of restrictions, fixed problem, other neighbors 

overwater 

  









 

2. K Michael Exel, 37511 Melrose Dr, Palm Springs 

 

a. On Monday, December 12 at 3:11 p.m. a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Irrigating during restricted hours 

ii. Runoff 

 

b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Property is occupied 10-12 days per month. Watering days will be 

corrected January 18. Watering is important for trees. There is no 

run off.  

 











 
 
 
December 13,  2016 
 
K Michael Exel                                                                          
1817 Carmelina Dr 
San Diego, CA 92116 
 

RE: FINE ON ACCOUNT#  37511 Melrose Dr 
 

Dear Valued Customer: 
 
Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on 
Monday, December 12, 2016 at 3:11 pm, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil 
(monetary) penalty.  
 
You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will 
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not 
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $50.00 will be added onto your 
water bill.  
 

You were cited for: 
 

  Outdoor  irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays,& Fridays,  before 7:00 a.m. 

and after 7:00 p.m. 

 

 Runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public 

walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited. 

 
 
This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional 
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for 
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family 
residential customer.    
 



Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition, 
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.  
 
If you have any additional questions, please contact us. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Ashley Metzger 
Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Desert Water Agency 
On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause 



7-B 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/KRAUSE 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 17, 2017 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR BOARD ATTENDANCE 

AT URBAN WATER INSTITUTE’S SPRING WATER 
CONFERENCE  

 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is a copy of the Draft conference agenda 
for the Urban Water Institute’s Spring Water Conference, which will be held on 
February 8 – 10, 2017 at the Hilton Palm Springs Hotel.   
 
As in past practice, Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize 
those Board Members who are interested in attending the conference as in 
service to the Board. 
   
 



 
 

URBAN WATER INSTITUTE’S SPRING WATER CONFERENCE 

FEBRUARY 8-10, 2017  |  REGISTRATION FORM 
 
 

NAME: ________________________________________________TITLE: ___________________________________________ 
 

ORGANIZATION:_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 

ADDRESS:_________________________________________CITY/STATE/ZIP:_____________________________________ 
 

TEL:____________________FAX:____________________E-MAIL:_________________________________________________ 
 

CONFERENCE REGISTRATION FEES 

 

Registration fees include handouts, breakfasts, luncheon, breaks and receptions. 
 

____$375 Urban Water Member Registration Fee for Conference February 8-10, 2017  

          (Must be a member of the Urban Water Institute with current dues paid in full)                                               
 

_____$475 Non-Member Registration Fee for Conference February 8-10, 2017 
 

_____$100 Spouse Registration - Includes breakfasts, luncheon, breaks and receptions.   Spouse Name For Nametag: 
 

REGISTRATION INFORMATION 

LOCATION: 
The Spring Water Conference will be conducted in Palm Springs at The Hilton Palm Springs Hotel located at: 
400 East Tahquitz Canyon Way, Palm Springs, CA 92262 
 

WILL YOU STAY AT THE HILTON PALM SPRINGS? 
Please contact the hotel directly to reserve your room, we have a special conference rate of $152.00.  To make your room reservations, 
call the Hilton Palm Springs Hotel directly at (760) 320-6868 and reference Urban Water Institute.  Please note the cut-off date for the 
group rate is January 7, 2017. Reservations can also be made online at www.hilton.com.  
 

CONFERENCE REGISTRATION:   (All Registrations Should Be Made In Advance)  

To pay by credit card visit our website www.urbanwater.com.  You can register online via PayPal, you may be promoted to create a 
PayPal account. You may pay with a Visa, MasterCard or American Express. If you prefer to pay by credit card and NOT create a 
PayPal log in, please fill out the registration form and return to Eva Padilla at eva@stacy-davis.com or fax to (949) 305-9919.  
 

To pay by check, please complete the Registration Form and send it along with a check made payable to:  
Urban Water Institute: 24651 Evereve Circle, Suite 1, Lake Forest, CA 92630.   
 

After February 3, 2017 registrations will be accepted at the door on a space available basis, with an additional $25 administrative charge. 
 

CANCELLATION POLICY:  
Cancellations must be received in writing by January 25, 2017.  Faxes are accepted at (949) 305-9919.  Registration fee will be refunded, 
less a $50 administrative charge if received by January 25, 2017. Substitutes are accepted. No refunds after  
January 25, 2017. The Institute reserves the right to substitute announced speakers and assumes no responsibility for personal expenses. 
 

EXHIBITOR & SPONSORSHIP INFORMATION:  
Information on exhibiting and sponsoring may be obtained by calling (949) 679-9676 or can be found on the Urban Water Institute 
Website www.urbanwater.com. 
 

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD: 
 □ Visa  □ MasterCard  □ American Express 
 Name on Card: _____________________________________________ 
 Card Number: ______________________________________________ 
 Expires (MM/YY): ______________ Amount: ____________________ 
 Security Code: ______________________________________________ 
 Billing Address: _____________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________ 
 Signature: ___________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

MAIL CONFERENCE REGISTRATION CHECKS PAYABLE TO: 

Urban Water Institute: 24651 Evereve Circle, Suite 1  Lake Forest, CA 92630 
Tax ID # 33-0578523 

For More Information Contact The Urban Water Institute at (949) 679-9676 or eva@stacy-davis.com 

http://www.hilton.com/
http://www.urbanwater.com/
mailto:eva@stacy-davis.com
http://www.urbanwater.com/
mailto:eva@stacy-davis.com


 
 

Urban Water Institute’s Spring Water Conference 
February 8-10, 2017 

 

Draft Conference Agenda 
 

Wednesday, February 8, 2017 
12:00 p.m. - Registration, Networking & Exhibits 
 
1:00 p.m. - Opening Remarks & Introduction 
 Matt Stone, Chair, Urban Water Institute  
 
1:15 p.m. - Welcome to Palm Springs (Confirmed) 
 Mayor Robert Moon, City of Palm Springs  
 
1:30 p.m. – Storm Water Into Drinking Water (Confirmed) 
 Introduction by Jim Noyes, Executive Director, Urban Water Institute  

Mark Pestrella, Chief Deputy Director, County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works  
  
2:15 p.m. – WIIN Act 
 Roger Patterson, Assistant General Manager/Strategic Water Initiatives, Metropolitan Water 
 District of Southern California  
 James Peterson, Federal/Southern California Director, Townsend Public Affairs 
 
3:00 p.m. – Networking Break 
 
3:15 p.m. – Direct Potable Reuse Panel (Confirmed) 
 Moderator: Rich Nagel, General Manager, West Basin Municipal Water District 
 David Metz, Partner, FM3  
 Dr. George Tchobanoglous, PE, Professor Emeritus in the UC Davis Department of Civil and 
 Environmental Engineering  
 Jennifer West, Managing Director, WateReuse California 
 
4:30 p.m. – Adjourn 
 
5:00 p.m. –  Welcome Reception  
 
6:00 p.m. – Dinner on Your Own 
 
Thursday, February 9, 2017 
8:00 a.m. – Registration, Exhibits, Networking & Continental Breakfast – Sponsored by: Western 
Municipal Water District 
 



 
9:00 a.m. –  Opening Remarks  

James Noyes, Executive Director, Urban Water Institute 
 

9:15 a.m. – Groundwater Management Legislation (Confirmed) 
 Moderator: John Thornton, PE, Partner & Water Resource Consultant, Hunt Thornton 
 Resource Strategies, LLC  
 Bruce Daniels, Board of Directors, Soquel Creek Water District  

Trevor Joseph, Senior Engineering Geologist, California Department of Water Resources  
Kevin M. O’Brien, Partner, Downey Brand LLP  

  
10:30 a.m. – Networking Break  
 
10:45 a.m. – Water Conservation Proposed State Board Regulations (Confirmed) 

Frances Spivy-Weber, Board Member, State Water Resources Control Board  
 

11:15 a.m. – Water Leader of the Year Award Presentation to Frances Spivy-Weber  
 Presented by Mary Aileen Matheis, Board President, Irvine Ranch Water District 
 
11:30 a.m. – Colorado River 
 
12:30 p.m. – Luncheon  
 
1:45 p.m. – Urban Update, Denver Colorado (Confirmed) 
 Introduction by Rita Schmidt Sudman, Author & Senior Advisor, Water Education Foundation  

 James S. Lochhead, CEO/Manager, Denver Water  
 
2:30 p.m. – Networking Break – Sponsored by: Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
 
3:15 p.m. – Water Security & Tribalism 
 Moderator: Dr. Greg Quist, Director, Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water District 
 
4:00 p.m. – Marijuana Legislation 
 
5:00 p.m. – Adjourn – Chairman’s Reception – Sponsored by Water Replenishment District 
 
6:00 p.m. – Dinner on Your Own 
 
Friday, February 10, 2017 
8:00 a.m. – Registration, Exhibits, Networking & Buffet Breakfast – Sponsored by Coachella Valley 
Water District  
Chairman's Drawing: Don't miss out on your opportunity to participate in the Chairman's  Drawing! 
Please pick up your raffle ticket at the registration desk. 
 
8:30 a.m. – Opening Remarks 
 James Noyes, Executive Director, Urban Water Institute 
 
 



8:45 a.m. – Straight Talk with Art Levine (Confirmed) 
 Chairman Randy Record, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California  
 
9:30 a.m. – Innovating Your Way To Success – Lessons From Recent Research On “Fostering Research 
And Innovation Within Water Utilities” (Confirmed) 
 Based on a global survey of nearly 400 utility employees representing 77 utilities from North America, Australia, Asia, 
 and the  European Union. 91% believe that innovation is critical to the future success of their utility. While 62% 
 considered their utility “innovative”, less than 40% report having the key attributes of an innovative organization modeled 
 by leading companies in both public  and private industries. This session will provide utilities the knowledge and tools to 
 create a sustainable culture of innovation, broadly engage stakeholders, and effectively leverage external resources. 

Ed Means, President, Means Consulting LLC  
 
10:15 a.m. – Federal Legislators  
  
11:00 a.m. - Conference Adjourn 



8-B 

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 17, 2017 

 
RE: DECEMBER 2016 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
  
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 14 percent reduction in potable 
water production during December 2016 compared to the same month in 2013 – the 
baseline year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to 
measure statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative 
water savings June 2015 through December 2016 is 24% percent. DWA reports its 
production to the state on a monthly basis.  

 
Staff is also tracking the water use compared to the threshold in the rate study 
regarding the proposed drought surcharge. The first trigger for the Board to consider 
action would be at use 10% below April 2015 – March 2016 levels. This trigger was not 
met. 

DWA is asking its customers to save 10-13% compared to 2013 to help achieve long-
term sustainability. The cumulative savings beginning in June of 2016 when we put our 
10-13% target in place is 19%. 

  

40 

30 29 

24 
21 

28 

9.5 10 

15 

23 23 

39 

33 

22 
18.5 

8 

16 

21 

14 

Savings and Targets 
Percent saved Cumulative

36% 
32% 

10-13% 



  

Page 2 of 2 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for December 2016.  
December 2016 water production  1,892.5 AF 

December 2013 water production  3,088.6 AF 

Percent changed per drought surcharge baseline 5.4% 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

535.0 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

65.4% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 106,085 

Estimated R-GPCD  122.57 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

32 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

34 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

28 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

10 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on 
a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use in 
DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita 
Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of December was 1,250,719.3 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 90,394 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for December was taken into consideration 
against our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several 
percentage points higher. 
 



8-C 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 17, 2017 

 
RE: LAKE PERRIS SEISMIC REMEDIATION UPDATE 
 

The Department of Water Resources (DWR), Operations Maintenance and 
Engineering Committee have issued their Perris Dam Seismic remediation of 
embankment contract update for January 12, 2017.  Overall work progress 
continues ahead of schedule: 
 

• 81% of the work has been completed 
•  72% of the time elapsed 

 
Recently significant completed work: 
 

• Left abutment road completed 
• New toe drain completed 

 
The contractor continues to work on the following: 
      

• Processing and placement of compacting berm material 
• Quarry excavation and rock processing 
• Placement and compacting of filter and drain material for blanket drain 

 
The contractor and DWR continue to review the delays related to haul road and 
quarry materials related to liquidated damages and the contractor’s extra work 
claims 
 
Winter weather has been a challenge to keep current construction schedules. 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

The current contract variance is $2,501,821 with $1,053,000 in liquidated 
damages. 
 
Variance: 
 

• $421,200.02 Change Orders 
• $1,458,234.19 Contract Item Overages 
• $622,387.32 Adjustments 

 
The placement and compaction of material is scheduled to be completed June 
30, 2017, just one and a half months behind the contract schedule. 
 
 



 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
January 12, 2017 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

 
Contract Summary 
 

Notice To Begin Work:    August 20, 2014 
Contract Completion:      November 20, 2017 
Pulice Construction:        $75,538,626 
Engineers Estimate:        $83,000,000 
Current Update:             81% of Work Completed, 72% Time Elapsed 

 
 
 
 
 
Completed Work 

 
Cement Deep Soil Mixing Complete 
Borrow Source Cleared and Potholed 
New Toe Drain complete 
Existing Toe Drain Line Replaced 
Left Abutment Road Blasted/Excavated 
Old Toe Drain protected from  
storm water with Filter/Berm  
 

 
 
 
Safety 
 

DWR and Contractor continue to review safety hazard concerns.  Contractor has successfully 
completed over 402 work days without a lost-time incident.  1 lost-time incident on project.  

 
On-Going Work 
 

Processing, placing, and compacting of Berm material; Quarry Excavation and Rock 
Processing; Placing and compacting filter and drain material for blanket drain.   
 

Schedule and Construction Sequencing 
 

Construction sequencing was modified to allow CDSM installation before construction of the toe 
drain.  Left Abutment Road, Drain Lines, and CDSM completed (see Schedule Status below).   

 
Construction Contract Challenges and Potential Impacts 
 

Left Abutment Access Road  
DWR and the contractor reviewing the LAAR delays and related liquidated damages.  DWR 
and contractor are discussing best use of LAAR materials for the project. 
 
 
 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/


 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
January 12, 2017 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

Quarry Rock Processing 
Contractor is processing drain and filter material in phase 2 production.  The filter and drain 
material are required for the blanket drain.  Contractor continues to claim differing site 
condition as the cause of material processing problems.  The materials are currently meeting 
specifications.  Rock Processing Plant maintenance is affecting production rates.  
   
Other Challenges 
Weather, Rainfall, and Storm Water.  A long period of rainy weather has affected the safety of 
the worksite.  Roads and work areas are extremely slippery when wet. Hauling suspended. 
 

Contract Status as of 10/20/2016 
 

Spec 
No. 

Award 
Amount 

Liquidated 
Damages 

Contract 
Variance To 
Date 

Current 
Contract 
Amount 

Current 
Contract 
Completion 
Date 

Pay To Date Percent 
Complete 

14-03 $75,538,626 $1,053,000 $2,501,821 
(see below) 

$78,040,447 11/20/2017 $63,747,100 81.6% 

 
Contractor Pay Requests  
 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date 

Date 
Signed 

Net 
Payment 

Gross 
Earnings 

Net Payment 
(to date) 

Gross Earnings 
(to date) 

7/21/2016 8/20/2016 9/8/2016 $1,855,865.11 $2,100,384.33 $53,597,816.68 $57,304,543.88 

8/21/2016 9/20/2016 10/6/2016 $1,836,359.79 $2,079,852.41 $55,434,176.47 $59,384,396.29 

9/21/2016 10/20/2016 11/4/2016 $1,581,981.13 $1,741,032.77 $57,016,157.60 $61,125,429.06 

10/21/2016 11/20/2016 11/22/2016  $1,174,249.48 $1,236,052.08 $58,190,407.08 $62,361,481.14 

11/21/2016 12/20/2016 12/21/2016  $1,316,337.45 $1,385,618.37 $59,506,744.53 $63,747,099.51 
 
Schedule Status 
 

Left Abutment Access Road Milestone – May 15, 2015  
Completed – October 28, 2016 

 
Drain Lines Installation Milestone – July 1, 2015 

Completed – Sept 30, 2016  
 
CDSM Milestone – November 15, 2016  

Completed May 1, 2016 
 
Compacted Berm Milestone – May 15, 2017 

Estimated Completion Date – June 30, 2017 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/


Foundation Treatment and Stability Berm

Perris Dam Remediation Project Slide 14



8-D 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

December 28, 2016 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: DECEMBER 15, 2016, MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The December 15, 2016, meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., took place at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. Board Action Items 

The SWC Board authorized a consulting contract for $25,000 with the consulting 

firm, Tetra Tech, to obtain analysis and consulting services by Dr. Paul Hutton. Dr. Hutton is 

retiring from Metropolitan Water District of Southern California at the end of 2016, and will be 

employed going forward by Tetra Tech. Dr. Hutton has provided ongoing analysis and policy 

interpretation for various water supply issues affecting the State Water Project. His work 

involving the natural flow within the Central Valley, trends in Delta outflow, and salinity and 

historical water use by Central Valley water users has been especially useful. His input on these 

topics has helped support the SWC in activities before the State Water Resources Control Board, 

in litigation, and in various other forums. The $25,000 would come from the SWP-CVP 

Coordinated Project Budget under the SWC Bay Delta Fund.  

The Board also authorized a $7,500 contract for consulting services with Chris 

Enright of Resources Management Associates. The work is related to the development of an 

adaptive management program for the Montezuma Slough Salinity Control Gates Reoperation 

Action. SWC General Manager Terry Erlewine noted that Mr. Enright has provided valuable 

input and background briefings to the consultants working on the project. Terry explained that he 

previously hired Mr. Enright under his delegated authority for services up to $5,000, and the new 

$7,500 contract would replace and incorporate the prior $5,000 amount. 



 

 
- 2 - 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

2.  Water Supply Report 

John Leahigh of the Department of Water Resources reported on current water 

supply conditions. Precipitation during the current water year was strong for October and 

November, with Northern California precipitation at the highest level in 30 years for this time of 

year. The early wet conditions noted last month were continuing to hold strong, with another 

heavy two-day rain event December 15-16 expected to keep the momentum going. Northern 

Sierra precipitation was 180 percent of average as of December 14, and expected to remain 

above average as of the end of the calendar year. The Central Sierra / San Joaquin region’s 

precipitation was 123 percent of average as of December 14, and the region has a good shot at 

coming in around the average for the end of the calendar year. Precipitation in the Tulare Basin 

was lower, at 64 percent of average for the date; however heavy mid-December rains were 

expected to provide a boost.  

Generally, runoff conditions have not been as favorable as precipitation 

conditions. The Central Valley, though, saw greater runoff in November, compared to recent 

years. This has allowed for higher export rates and significantly increased storage in the SWP 

share of San Luis Reservoir. Lake Oroville finally has experienced some decent inflows and 

storage gains, standing at 1.6 MAF and 45 percent of capacity in mid-December. Because of the 

heavy rains, Folsom Lake operations moved into the flood control management range with 

releases of up to 30,000 CFS on the American River. Shasta Reservoir was at 66 percent of 

capacity; Don Pedro Reservoir, 68 percent; Trinity Lake, 47 percent; New Melones Lake, 23 

percent; and San Luis Reservoir, 52 percent. Other reservoirs ranged from 23 percent of capacity 

(Pine Flat Reservoir) to 62 percent of capacity (Millerton Lake).   

John reported that the Delta has seen good outflow totals but the conflict between 

water supply and listed species needs has begun to come into play as turbidity has increased and 

longfin and Delta smelt have begun migrating. As an operations strategy, DWR is taking a 

“tempered” approach to the situation by proactively making export reductions to help avoid 

triggering more onerous regulatory actions for fish species. He said the same strategy was used 

the past two years, with success, and the department hopes it will be similarly successful this 

year. 



 

 
- 3 - 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

On a related note, on December 21, DWR announced that December’s storms and 

rising reservoirs led to an increase in the approved allocation for 2017 from 20 percent to 45 

percent. DWR Director Mark Cowin said the department hopes to be able to adjust the allocation 

even higher in the coming year, while cautioning that drought conditions are always a possibility. 

Six days after John Leahigh’s report to the SWC Board, DWR reported that Lake Oroville held 

nearly 1.9 million acre feet, a notable uptick to 54 percent of capacity and 88 percent of 

historical average for the date. Shasta Lake, meanwhile, held 3.3 MAF, 73 percent of its capacity 

and 120 percent of its historical average. San Luis Reservoir, the critical south-of-Delta storage 

facility, held 1.16 MAF, which is 57 percent of capacity and 87 percent of its average for the 

date.    

3. DWR Report on Draft Statewide Water Conservation Plan 

During the meeting, Peter Brostrom of DWR’s Water Use Efficiency Section 

gave an overview of the recently released draft statewide water conservation plan, titled “Making 

Water Conservation a California Way of Life.” The plan implements Governor Jerry Brown’s 

Executive Order B-37-16 related to the drought emergency and planning for future water 

shortages. Five state agencies, including DWR and the State Water Board, are preparing the plan, 

which is scheduled to go to the Governor by January 20. The Governor’s Office is expected to 

complete the plan in late February. It will be implemented through future legislation and agency 

rulemaking. The handout from the presentation is included with this memo. 

One of the more significant elements of the plan is a move away from the “20 

percent by 2020” water use reduction approach contained in the 2009 SB-X7-7 legislation to a 

“water target” system where the state would adopt new standards for urban water use, as well as 

a new urban water use target methodology. In turn, urban water suppliers would be required to 

calculate their unique water use targets based on the new standards and on local conditions 

(population, climate, landscape area, etc.). Volumetric targets would be used for three categories 

of use: indoor residential, outdoor irrigation and water system leaks. Because of the great 

diversity of the commercial, industrial and institutional (CII) sector, the state is proposing new 

“performance standards” instead of specific volumetric targets. The proposed timeline calls for 

mandatory reporting starting in 2019 for water use in the 2018 water year, with targets due to be 

met in 2025.  



 

 
- 4 - 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

During the presentation, several questions arose. Regarding water budgeting, 

Peter explained that this would be calculated based on the total service area of an agency, and not 

at the individual residential level. Regarding compliance and potential state enforcement, he 

explained that agencies that do not meet their targets could face enforcement action by the State 

Water Board in the form of fines or other actions.  

Peter briefly explained several other elements of the draft plan, including new 

water waste prohibitions that will be adopted by the State Water Board, water loss validation 

requirements, and water shortage contingency planning. He added that several stakeholder 

groups have been formed or will be developed to address industry-related concerns (for example, 

within the landscape industry) and other complexities and concerns.  

In related action, the Board approved supporting the comment letter on the draft 

water conservation plan being prepared by the Association of California Water Agencies.   

4. General Manager’s Report and Legislative Report 

During his brief report, Terry Erlewine noted that monitoring efforts in Suisun 

Marsh are proceeding well with the help of several consultants. Additionally, he reported that 

proposed updates and revisions to the SWC bylaws will roll out in January. A number of the 

bylaw changes are simply administrative in nature for streamlining purposes, and many will 

require the written vote of members. Finally, Terry explained that DWR has acquired a new 

monitoring boat, the “Sentinel.” It replaces DWR’s first environmental research vessel, the “San 

Carlos,” which operated from 1976 through 2016.  

On the legislative front, Terry gave a brief election summary. He noted that 

Democrats have secured a majority in both the state Assembly (55 of 80 seats) and the Senate 

(27 of 40 seats). A two-thirds “super majority” in the Legislature gives Democrats the ability to 

pass taxes and take other actions without Republican support, though it would require all 

Democrats to be in agreement, assuming Republicans are opposed. It is early in the legislative 

season. Thus far, two bills have been introduced involving potential general obligation bond 

measures with water purposes. They include SB 5 by Senate President Pro Tem Kevin De Leon, 

which would place a $3 billion general obligation bond before voters in June 2018 for parks and 

water purposes, and AB 18 by Assemblyman Eduardo Garcia, which is a similar though not 



 

 
- 5 - 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

identical $3.05 billion general obligation bond measure. SWC is watching with concern a 

possible legislative proposal by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, which may 

sponsor new legislation in 2017 in collaboration with the Yuba Salmon Partnership Initiative. It 

would modify the California Endangered Species Act to designate fish populations transported 

above rim dams as experimental populations, as is allowed by the federal Endangered Species 

Act, section 10(j).   

5. Report on Business Processes Objectives   

Theresa Lightle, senior financial management analyst with SWC, gave a 

presentation entitled “FY 2016-17 Business Processes Objectives.” This is an initiative designed 

to enhance the financial management of the SWP to preserve the long-term delivery of 

affordable water. Theresa explained that the goal is to help the SWC Board to be more actively 

engaged in DWR’s management of the SWP. The power point presentation is included with this 

memo.   

The information presented was based on data that DWR provided in tables, which 

Theresa then worked with to create more helpful and understandable bar charts and visual 

representations. The data presented at the meeting showed that in several accounting areas, such 

as operational costs and capital activities, DWR’s budgets have resulted in over-collections from 

the SWC. However, Theresa explained that the extra cash on hand provides liquidity and 

flexibility for DWR to handle the wide swings in SWP costs and daily operations, as well as 

unfunded work and costs that are anticipated. During the discussion, it was noted that over-

budgeting is a common, conservative financial management approach, and that the issue is how 

large the cushion should be.  

In the future, Theresa will continue working with DWR to improve the flow of 

financial information, including multi-year data for historical context, and will continue 

reporting to the SWC Board in this reader-friendly fashion. The presentation concluded by 

explaining the priorities going forward with the Business Process Objectives effort. The top four 

priorities include: (1) coordination between DWR and the SWC on “financial enhancements” 

being negotiated under contract amendments, (2) coordinating the development of SWC SWP 



 

 
- 6 - 

09897.00000\29448722.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

reporting requirements, (3) cash flow and financing oversight, and (4) oversight and coordination 

of SWP allocation and classification of expenditures.  

DEB KOLLARS 











Ending At Midnight - January 12, 2017

Graph Updated 01/13/2017 08:15 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
56% | 81%

Lake Shasta
83% | 129%

Lake Oroville
79% | 126%

Folsom Lake
69% | 137%

New Melones Lake
35% | 60%

Don Pedro Reservoir
89% | 133%

Lake McClure
65% | 142%

San Luis Reservoir
69% | 95%

Millerton Lake
83% | 146%

Lake Perris
38% | 48%

Castaic Lake
64% | 79%

Pine Flat Reservoir
47% | 110%




















































































	011717 Board Agenda
	Item 2A 120616 Board Minutes
	MINUTES    2-A
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2B 121516 Special Board Minutes
	MINUTES    2-B
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2C 122016 Board Minutes
	MINUTES    2-C
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 GM Report
	JANUARY 17, 2017

	Item 4A1 122916 Exec Comm
	Item 4A2 011117 Exec Comm
	Item 4B 010517 Conserv PA
	Item 6 01 17 17 Dec Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A Penalty hearings staff report
	011717 hearing packet_Redacted.pdf
	011717 Penalty hearing summaries.pdf
	McKinney
	McKinney request for hearing
	McKinney citation
	Exel
	Exel request for hearing
	Exel citation


	Item 7B Attend Urban Water Institutes Spring Water Conf
	Item 8B December 2016 Production Staff Report 011717v2
	Item 8C Lake Perris Seismic Remediation staff report
	Item 8D SWC MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DECEMBER 15 2016 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c2 (3)
	ADP62E9.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. UBoard Action Items


	Item 9A 01 17 17 Dec O & C Media
	Item 9B 01 17 17 Dec O & C Activities



